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321-867-7214; Facsimile: 321-867—
1817.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Randall M. Heald, Patent Counsel,
Office of the Chief Counsel, Mail Code
CC-A, NASA John F. Kennedy Space
Center, Kennedy Space Center, FL
32899. Telephone: 321-867-7214;
Facsimile: 321-867-1817. Information
about other NASA inventions available
for licensing can be found online at
http://technology.nasa.gov/.

Sumara M. Thompson-King,

Acting Deputy General Counsel.

[FR Doc. 2012-10955 Filed 5-7-12; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7510-13-P

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND
SPACE ADMINISTRATION

[Notice (12-032)]

Notice of Intent To Grant Exclusive
License

AGENCY: National Aeronautics and
Space Administration.

ACTION: Notice of Intent To Grant an
Exclusive License.

SUMMARY: This notice is issued in
accordance with 35 U.S.C. 209(e) and 37
CFR 404.7(a)(1)(i). NASA hereby gives
notice of its intent to grant an exclusive
license to practice the inventions
described and claimed in NASA Case
Number(s) LAR-16079-1 entitled
“Liquid Crystalline Thermosets From
Oligo-Esters, Ester-Imides And Ester-
Amides,” U.S. Patent Number
6,939,940; LAR-17157—-1 entitled
“Liquid Crystalline Thermosets From
Ester, Ester-Imide, And Ester-Amide
Oligomers” U.S. Patent Number
7,507,784; and LAR-17402—1 entitled
“Wholly Aromatic Liquid Crystalline
Polyetherimide (LC-PEI) Resins,” U.S.
Patent Number 7,964,698, to Allotropica
Technologies, Incorporated having its
principal place of business in Chapel
Hill, North Carolina. The patent rights
have been assigned to the United States
of America as represented by the
Administrator of the National
Aeronautics and Space Administration.
The prospective exclusive license will
comply with the terms and conditions
of 35 U.S.C. 209 and 37 CFR 404.7.
DATES: The prospective exclusive
license may be granted unless, within
fifteen (15) days from the date of this
published notice, NASA receives
written objections including evidence
and argument that establish that the
grant of the license would not be
consistent with the requirements of 35
U.S.C. 209 and 37 CFR 404.7.
Competing applications completed and

received by NASA within fifteen (15)
days of the date of this published notice
will also be treated as objections to the
grant of the contemplated exclusive
license.

Objections submitted in response to
this notice will not be made available to
the public for inspection and, to the
extent permitted by law, will not be
released under the Freedom of
Information Act, 5 U.S.C. 552.

ADDRESSES: Objections relating to the
prospective license may be submitted to
Patent Counsel, Office of Chief Counsel,
NASA Langley Research Center, MS
030, Hampton, VA 23681; (757) 864—
5057 (phone), (757) 864—9190 (fax).

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Thomas K. McBride Jr., Patent Attorney,
Office of Chief Counsel, NASA Langley
Research Center, MS 030, Hampton, VA
23681; (757) 864-5057; Fax: (757) 864—
9190. Information about other NASA
inventions available for licensing can be
found online at http://
techtracs.nasa.gov/.

Sumara M. Thompson-King,

Acting Deputy General Counsel.

[FR Doc. 2012-10956 Filed 5-7-12; 8:45 am|]
BILLING CODE 7510-13-P

NATIONAL TRANSPORTATION
SAFETY BOARD

Sunshine Act Meeting

TIME AND DATE: 9:30 a.m., Tuesday, May
22, 2012.

PLACE: NTSB Conference Center, 429
L’Enfant Plaza SW., Washington, DC
20594.

STATUS: The one item is open to the
public.

MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

8413, Safety Study: The Safety of

Experimental Amateur-Built Aircraft.
NEWS MEDIA CONTACT: Telephone: (202)
314-6100.

The press and public may enter the
NTSB Conference Center one hour prior
to the meeting for set up and seating.

Individuals requesting specific
accommodations should contact
Rochelle Hall at (202) 314-6305 by
Friday, May 18, 2012.

The public may view the meeting via
a live or archived webcast by accessing
a link under “News & Events” on the
NTSB home page at www.ntsb.gov.

Schedule updates including weather-
related cancellations are also available
at www.ntsb.gov.

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Candi
Bing, (202) 314-6403 or by email at
bingc@ntsb.gov.

Dated: Friday, May 4, 2012.
Candi R. Bing,
Federal Register Liaison Officer.
[FR Doc. 2012-11185 Filed 5-4—12; 4:15 pm]
BILLING CODE 7533-01-P

NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

[NRC-2012-0102; Docket No. 50-409,
License DPR-045]

LaCrosse Boiling Water Reactor,
Exemption From Certain
Requirements, Vernon County, WI

AGENCY: Nuclear Regulatory
Commission.

ACTION: Environmental assessment and
finding of no significant impact.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: John
Hickman, Division of Waste
Management and Environmental
Protection, Office of Federal and State
Materials and Environmental
Management Programs, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Mail Stop
T8F5, Washington, DC 20555-0001;
telephone: 301-415-3017; email:
John.Hickman@nrc.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
I. Introduction

The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC or the Commission)
staff is considering a request dated
December 1, 2010, by Dairyland Power
Cooperative, (DPC, the licensee)
requesting exemptions from certain
security requirements in Title 10 of the
Code Federal Regulations (10 CFR)
73.55, for the LaCrosse Boiling Water
Reactor (LACBWR).

This Environmental Assessment (EA)
has been developed in accordance with
the requirements of 10 CFR 51.21.

II. Environmental Assessment
Identification of Proposed Action

The proposed action would exempt
LACBWR, a 10 CFR Part 50 licensee,
from certain 10 CFR Part 73 security
requirements because LACBWR is
permanently shut-down and defueled.
The part of this proposed action
involving safeguards plans meets the
categorical exclusion provision in 10
CFR 51.22(c)(25)(vi)(F), because it is an
exemption from the Commission’s
regulations and (i) there is no significant
hazards consideration; (ii) there is no
significant change in the types or
significant increase in the amounts of
any effluents that may be released
offsite; (iii) there is no significant
increase in individual or cumulative
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public or occupational radiation
exposure; (iv) there is no significant
construction impact; (v) there is no
significant increase in the potential for
or consequences from radiological
accidents; and (vi) the requirements
from which an exemption is sought
involve safeguard plans (which include
physical protection plans). Therefore,
this part of the action does not require
either an environmental assessment or
an environmental impact statement.
This environmental assessment was
prepared for the part of the proposed
action that does not involve safeguards
plans (i.e., the exemption from the
implementation date required by 10
CFR 73.55(a)(1)).

Need for Proposed Action

The NRC revised 10 CFR 73.55
through the issuance of a final rule on
March 27, 2009 (74 FR 13926). Section
73.55 requires that licensees establish
and maintain physical protection and
security for activities involving special
nuclear material (SNM). Section
73.55(a)(1) requires implementation of
the 10 CFR 73.55 requirements by
March 31, 2010. The revised regulation
stated that it was applicable to all Part
50 licensees. The NRC became aware
that many Part 50 licensees with
facilities in decommissioning status did
not recognize the applicability of this
regulation to their facilities. By letter
dated August 2, 2010, the NRC
discussed the applicability of the
revised 10 CFR 73.55 to all Part 50
licensees, stating that each licensee
needs to evaluate the applicability of the
regulation to its facility and either make
appropriate changes to its Physical
Security Plan (PSP), or request an
exemption.

The proposed action is needed
because the permanently shut-down and
defueled status of LACBWR affects the
level of security necessary to protect
against radiological sabotage or
diversion and the implementation date
in 10 CFR 73.55(a)(1) has passed. The
shutdown status of LACBWR means that
there are no longer interconnected
operating systems which require
security to prevent offsite releases or
protect SNM. Granting the licensee an
exemption from the March 31, 2010,
implementation date would allow the
licensee to continue to follow its
existing, NRC-approved PSP.

Environmental Impacts of the Proposed
Action

The NRC staff evaluated the
environmental impacts of the proposed
action and concludes that exempting the
facility from the implementation date
will not have any adverse

environmental impacts. The NRC staff
has also determined that the proposed
action alleviates the licensee from
complying with security requirements
that are not necessary for the
permanently shut-down and defueled
status. In addition, there will be no
construction or major renovation of any
buildings or structures, no ground
disturbing activities, no alteration to
land or air quality, or any affect on
historic and cultural resources
associated with an extension of the
compliance deadline. Therefore, the
proposed action does not reduce the
protection of the stored spent fuel. The
proposed action will not significantly
increase the probability or consequences
of accidents, no changes are being made
in the types of any effluents that may be
released offsite, and there is no
significant increase in occupational or
public radiation exposure. Therefore,
there are no significant radiological
environmental impacts associated with
the proposed action.

With regard to potential non-
radiological impacts, there will be no
construction or renovation of buildings
or structures, or any ground disturbing
activities associated with an extension
of the compliance deadline. In addition
the proposed action does not affect non-
radiological plant effluents and has no
other environmental impact. Finally,
there will be no impact on historic sites.
Therefore, there are no significant non-
radiological environmental impacts
associated with the proposed action.

Accordingly, the NRC staff concludes
that there are no significant
environmental impacts associated with
the proposed action.

Environmental Impacts of the
Alternatives to the Proposed Action

As an alternative to the proposed
action, the NRC staff considered denial
of the proposed action (i.e., the “no-
action” alternative). Denial of the
exemption request would result in no
change in current environmental
impacts because there will be no
construction or major renovation of any
buildings or structures, nor any ground
disturbing activities associated with an
extension of the compliance deadline.
Thus the environmental impacts of the
proposed action and no-action
alternative are similar. Therefore, the
no-action alternative is not further
considered.

Conclusion

The NRC staff has concluded that the
proposed action will not significantly
impact the quality of the human
environment, and that the proposed
action is the preferred alternative.

Agencies and Persons Consulted

In accordance with its stated policy,
on August 23, 2011, the NRC staff
consulted with the Wisconsin State
official of the Radiation Protection
Section, Wisconsin Department of
Health Services, regarding the
environmental impact of the proposed
action. The State official had no
comments.

The NRC staff has determined that the
proposed action is of a procedural
nature, and will not affect listed species
or critical habitat. Therefore, no further
consultation is required under Section 7
of the Endangered Species Act. The
NRC staff has also determined that the
proposed action is not the type of
activity that has the potential to cause
effects on historic properties. Therefore,
no further consultation is required
under Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act.

III. Finding of No Significant Impact

The NRC staff has prepared this EA as
part of its review of the proposed action.
On the basis of this EA, the NRC finds
that there are no significant
environmental impacts from the
proposed action, and that preparation of
an environmental impact statement is
not warranted. Accordingly, the NRC
has determined that a Finding of No
Significant Impact is appropriate.

IV. Further Information

For further details with respect to the
proposed action, see the licensee’s letter
dated December 1, 2010, [ADAMS
Accession Number ML103400106].
Documents related to this action,
including the application and
supporting documentation, are available
online in the NRC Library at http://
www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html.
From this site, you can access the NRC’s
Agencywide Document Access and
Management System (ADAMS), which
provides text and image files of NRC’s
public documents.

If you do not have access to ADAMS,
or if there are problems in accessing the
documents located in ADAMS, contact
the NRC Public Document Room (PDR)
Reference staff at 1-800-397—4209, 301—
415-4737, or by email to
pdr.resource@nrc.gov. These documents
may also be viewed electronically on
the public computers located at the
NRC’s PDR, O 1 F21, One White Flint
North, 11555 Rockville Pike, Rockville,
MD 20852. The PDR reproduction
contractor will copy documents for a
fee.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 30th day
of April 2012.
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For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
Bruce Watson,
Acting Deputy Director, Decommissioning
and Uranium Recovery Licensing Directorate,
Division of Waste Management and
Environmental Protection, Office of Federal
and State Materials and Environmental
Management Programs.
[FR Doc. 2012—-11038 Filed 5-7-12; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

Sunshine Federal Register Notice

AGENCY HOLDING THE MEETINGS: Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, [NRC-2012—
0002].

DATE: Weeks of May 7, 14, 21, 28, June
4,11, 2012.

PLACE: Commissioners’ Conference
Room, 11555 Rockville Pike, Rockville,
Maryland.

STATUS: Public and Closed.

Week of May 7, 2012
Friday, May 11, 2012

9:00 a.m. Briefing on Potential Medical
Isotope Production Licensing
Actions, (Public Meeting), (Contact:
Jessie Quichocho, 301-415-0209).

This meeting will be webcast live at
the Web address: www.nre.gov.
Week of May 14, 2012—Tentative
There are no meetings scheduled for
the week of May 14, 2012.
Week of May 21, 2012—Tentative
There are no meetings scheduled for
the week of May 21, 2012.
Week of May 28, 2012—Tentative
Friday, June 1, 2012

9:00 a.m. Briefing on Results of the
Agency Action Review Meeting
(AARM) (Public Meeting) (Contact:
Rani Franovich, 301-415-1868).

This meeting will be webcast live at
the Web address: www.nrc.gov.

Week of June 4, 2012—Tentative

Thursday, June 7, 2012

9:30 a.m. Meeting with the Advisory
Committee on Reactor Safeguards
(ACRS) (Public Meeting) (Contact:
Tanny Santos, 301-415-7270).

This meeting will be webcast live at
the Web address: www.nre.gov.

Week of June 11, 2012—Tentative
Friday, June 15, 2012

9:30 a.m. Joint Meeting of the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) and the Nuclear Regulatory

Commission (NRC) on Grid
Reliability (Public Meeting)
(Contact: Jim Andersen, 301-415—
3565).

This meeting will be webcast live at
the Web address: www.nre.gov.

* * * * *

* The schedule for Commission
meetings is subject to change on short
notice. To verify the status of meetings,
call (recording)—301-415-1292.
Contact person for more information:
Rochelle Bavol, 301-415-1651.

* * * * *

The NRC Commission Meeting
Schedule can be found on the Internet
at: http://www.nrc.gov/public-involve/
public-meetings/schedule.html.

* * * * *

The NRC provides reasonable
accommodation to individuals with
disabilities where appropriate. If you
need a reasonable accommodation to
participate in these public meetings, or
need this meeting notice or the
transcript or other information from the
public meetings in another format (e.g.
braille, large print), please notify Bill
Dosch, Chief, Work Life and Benefits
Branch, at 301-415-6200, TDD: 301—
415-2100, or by email at
william.dosch@nrc.gov. Determinations
on requests for reasonable
accommodation will be made on a case-
by-case basis.

* * * * *

This notice is distributed
electronically to subscribers. If you no
longer wish to receive it, or would like
to be added to the distribution, please
contact the Office of the Secretary,
Washington, DC 20555 (301-415—1969),
or send an email to
darlene.wright@nrc.gov.

Dated: May 3, 2012.
Rochelle C. Bavol,
Policy Coordinator, Office of the Secretary.
[FR Doc. 2012-11162 Filed 5—4-12; 4:15 pm]
BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

PENSION BENEFIT GUARANTY
CORPORATION

Submission of Information Collection
for OMB Review; Comment Request;
Payment of Premiums

AGENCY: Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation.

ACTION: Notice of request for OMB
approval of revised collection of
information.

SUMMARY: The Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation (PBGC) is modifying the
collection of information under its

regulation on Payment of Premiums
(OMB control number 1212—-0007;
expires December 31, 2013) and is
requesting that the Office of
Management and Budget (OMB)
approve the revised collection of
information under the Paperwork
Reduction Act for three years. This
notice informs the public of PBGC’s
request and solicits public comment on
the collection of information.

DATES: Comments must be submitted by
June 7, 2012.

ADDRESSES: Comments should be sent to
the Office of Information and Regulatory
Affairs, Office of Management and
Budget, Attention: Desk Officer for the
Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation,
via electronic mail at
OIRA_DOCKET@omb.eop.gov or by fax
to 202-395-6974.

Copies of the collection of
information and comments may be
obtained without charge by writing to
the Disclosure Division, Office of
General Counsel, Pension Benefit
Guaranty Corporation, 1200 K Street
NW., Washington, DC 20005—4026;
visiting the Disclosure Division; faxing
a request to 202—326—-4042; or calling
202—-326—4040 during normal business
hours. (TTY/TDD users may call the
Federal relay service toll-free at 1-800—
877-8339 and ask to be connected to
202—-326—4040.) The premium payment
regulation and the premium instructions
(including illustrative forms) for 2012
are available at www.pbgc.gov.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
James Bloch, Program Analyst,
Legislative and Policy Division, or
Catherine B. Klion, Manager, Regulatory
and Policy Division, Legislative and
Regulatory Department, Pension Benefit
Guaranty Corporation, 1200 K Street
NW., Washington, DC 20005—4026; 202—
326—4024. (TTY/TDD users may call the
Federal relay service toll-free at 1-800—
877-8339 and ask to be connected to
202-326-4024.)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Section
4007 of Title IV of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
(ERISA) requires pension plans covered
under Title IV pension insurance
programs to pay premiums to PBGC.
Pursuant to section 4007, PBGC has
issued its regulation on Payment of
Premiums (29 CFR part 4007). Under
§4007.3 of the premium payment
regulation, plan administrators are
required to file premium payments and
information prescribed by PBGC.
Premium information must be filed
electronically using “My Plan
Administration Account” (“My PAA”)
through PBGC’s Web site except to the
extent PBGC grants an exemption for
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